
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk
 

To:  All Members of the Rochdale Township 
Action and Resources Delegated Sub-
Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson
e-mail:              peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Monday, 7th November 2016

Dear Councillor,

Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee that will be held in the Training and 
Conference Suite on the first floor of the Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, on Tuesday, 15th November 2016, 
starting at 6.15pm.

The agenda and supporting papers for this meeting are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee 
Membership 2016/17

Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 15th November 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, first floor, Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 4 - 7

To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township 
Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee held 4th October 
2016

3.  Healey Area Forum 8 - 14

Minutes of the meeting held 8th September 2016

4.  Norden Area Forum 15 - 18

Minutes of the meeting held 14th September 2016

5.  Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting 19 - 22

Minutes of the meeting held 20th September 2016

6.  Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum 23 - 28

Minutes of the meeting held 26th September 2016



7.  Spotland and Falinge Area Forum 29 - 34

Minutes of the meeting held 29th September 2016

8.  Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority Group 35 - 36

Minutes of the meeting held 22nd September 2016.

9.  Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority 
Group 

37

Minutes of the meeting held 28th September 2016.

10.  Community Centre Monitoring 38 - 40

11.  Rochdale Blue Plaque Scheme 41 - 51

12.  Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17 52 - 71



P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 4th October 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Cecile Biant (Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Sultan Ali, 
O'Neill, Sheerin, Sullivan, Winkler and Zaman.

OFFICERS:   V White and N McKendry (Neighbourhoods Directorate), S Shahid 
(Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   4 members of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Farnell and Councillor Heakin.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
15 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, the Clerk of the Sub-
Committee, Mrs S Shahid declared a personal interest in respect of agenda item 30 
(Rochdale Township Funds) application TC/13/16 Ashley Close and Tomlinson 
Street 20mph speed limit. 

MINUTES
16 DECIDED – that the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Committee held on 28th June 2016, be approved as a correct record.

BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT COMMUNITY MEETING
17 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Balderstone and Kirkholt 
Community Meeting held on 21st June 2016, be noted.

BAMFORD AND OAKENROD AREA FORUM
18 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Bamford and
Oakenrod Area Forum held on 5th September 2016 and 13th June 2016, be 
noted.

BRIMROD, MARLAND AND SUDDEN AREA FORUM
19 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Brimrod, Marland and
Sudden Area Forum held on 16th June 2016, be noted.

CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
20 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Castleton Area Forum
held on 2nd June 2016, 11th June 2016 and 1st September 2016 be noted.

HEALEY AREA FORUM
21 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Healey Area Forum
held on 9th June 2016, be noted.

KINGSWAY AREA FORUM
22 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Castleton Area Forum
held on 25th August 2016, be noted.

MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH AREA FORUM
23 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Milkstone and 
Deeplish Area Forum held on 25th July 2016, be noted.

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



NORDEN AREA FORUM
24 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Norden Area Forum
held on 15th June  2016, be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP CLEAN AND GREEN PRIORITY GROUP
25 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Clean and 
Green Priority Group held on 9th June 2016 be noted. 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITIES AND ENGAGEMENT PRIORITY GROUP
26 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Communities 
and Engagement Priority Group held on 22nd June 2016, be noted. 

SPARTH AREA FORUM
27 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Sparth Area Forum
held on 2nd June 2016 and 15th September 2016, be noted.

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
28 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Spotland and Falinge
Area Forum held on 16 June 2016, be noted.

CASTLETON AREA FORUM
29 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Castleton Area Forum
held on 16th August 2016, be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17
30 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which updated the Sub-Committee on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Rochdale Township Fund 2016/2017, to enable the Sub-Committee 
to allocate funds to proposed projects.

The recommendations contained in the report were presented as the management of
the Rochdale Township Fund was a function delegated to this Sub-Committee to
determine. The Rochdale Township Funds were designed to be allocated to projects
that benefit the Township’s communities and environment and which realise the
Township’s stated priorities. The Sub-Committee monitors and reviews the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the
Township’s Funds.

The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments and balances
for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2,
the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 to the
submitted report and to consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of funds 
to proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.  

Members of the Rochdale Township Action and Resource Sub-Committee were 
requested to note the Principal Townships Officer’s assessment of the proposed 
projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale 
Township Fund, priorities of the Township and any specific risks identified.

Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to decide
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes as appropriate. 

The Sub-Committee considered the contribution from Mr N Wood in relation to 
application RP/06/16 –Rochdale Townships Origin Series 2017.

Page 5



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr B Brown on behalf of the residents
and Bamford Ward Councillors Jane Howard and Ian Duckworth in relation to
application TC/32/15 – Half Acre Lane, Rochdale - road closure scheme.

DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
Township Revenue and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the
submitted report be noted;

(2) the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed at
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted;

(3) it be noted that the Principal Township Officer had assessed the
proposed projects to be considered for funding, against the criteria of the
Rochdale Township Fund, priorities of the Township Plan and any specific
risks had been identified, (as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report);

(4) the Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice Chair and opposition spokespersons of the Committee, be given
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

(6) applications for Township Funds, (as outlined in appendix 4 of the
submitted report); and as, verbally updated by the Township Management
Officer, be dealt with as follows:-

APPLICANT PROJECT/SCHEME DECISION
Rochdale Hornets 
Sporting Foundation.

RP/06/16 Rochdale 
Township Origin Series 
2017.

Approve an allocation of 
£4,360 from the Projects 
Fund for the Rochdale 
Hornets Sporting 
Foundation. 

Township Officer. TC/32/15 Half Acre Lane 
Closure Scheme.

The application for the 
Half Acre Road Closure 
scheme be refused.

Rochdale Air Training 
Cadets.

TC/09/16 Ashfield Road 
Waiting Restrictions 
scheme.

The application for the 
Ashfield Road Waiting 
Restrictions be deferred 
pending a site visit with 
Highways and Ward 
Councillors. 

37th Rochdale Scouts. TC/10/16 Silk Street 
Waiting Restrictions 
Scheme

The application for the Silk 
Street Waiting Restrictions 
be deferred. 

Councillor Sheerin. TC/13/16 Ashley Close 
and Tomlinson Street 
20mph zone scheme. 

The application for the 
Ashley Close and 
Tomlinson Street be 
refused

Resident. TC14/16 Malvern Street 
West – prevention of rat 
running scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£10,000 from the Capital 
Fund from the Malvern 
Street prevention of rat 
running scheme.

Highways Officer TC/15/16 Bagslate Moor 
Road and Norden parking 
review and restrictions 
scheme. 

Approved an allocation of 
£4,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Bagslate 
Moor Road and Norden 
parking review and 
restrictions scheme.

Page 6



Members requested, that in the future, the Highways Department be requested to 
liaise with Ward Councillors prior to the submission of a commissioning document.

Eligible for call in: yes. 

Page 7



HEALEY AREA FORUM
Thursday, 8 September 2016

MINUTES

Present: S. Acton (Chair), M. Fraser, J. Murphy, J. White, A. Evans, J. Kennedy, G. Bowdon-Witts, 
V. Heather, H. Connely, R. Connely, C. Aspinall, K. Aspinall, S. Dixon, N. Dixon, D. Barnett, E. 
Walton, Rev H. Johnson, D. Wightman and E. Walsh.

Officers: E. Grace (Healthwatch), G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer) and PCSO Bird

Councillors: Councillors Wazir, Heakin and O’Neill

Apologies: A. Neilson

90 PACT MEETING
PCSO Bird attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was informed that over the previous three months there had been:

11 Domestic burglary’s
14 Burglary others
34 Theft from motor vehicle

A traffic operation had also taken place on Height’s Lane with a number of fixed penalties 
being issued.

The Chair thanked the police for the assistance they had provided to a resident who had 
spotted an individual acting suspiciously near to her home and the quick response in 
dealing with the recent traveller encroachment onto the Common.

A resident also raised concerns about vehicles riding on the Common. The police advised 
that issues of this nature should be reported on the 101 number. However the police would 
not get involved in a pursuit because of health and safety issues.

The Forum was also informed that crime figures for the Borough and the Ward are available 
on Police.co.uk

91 OPEN FORUM - AN OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS TO RAISE CONCERNS
The Chair informed the Forum that it was her intentions to introduce a Code of Conduct to 
Area Forum meetings. A brief overview of the Code of Conduct was given.

This was agreed by the Forum

The Chair also asked the Forum if they were agreeable to the introduction of an Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) which would formally elect a Chair and Vice Chair 

This was agreed by the Forum. The next meeting of the Area Forum (8th December 2016) 
would include the election of the Chair and Vice Chair.

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Residents raised the following issues:

1. A resident raised concerns about the condition of many footpaths in the Borough due 
to the prevalence of weeds.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

2. A resident informed the Forum that a bed had been thrown over the wall opposite 
380 Whitworth Road and that this issue had been reported previously.

3. The problem of wheelie bins being left out on New Street was highlighted again. No 
action has been taken since last reported.

4. A resident raised concerns about the number of estate agent / fly posting 
promotional material being attached to or placed on Council assets.

The Township and Engagement Officer would report this and agreed to investigate 
the number of penalty notices that have been issued in relation to these actions.

5. A resident commented that the highways work required at the junction of Ashmount 
Drive / Mizzy Road has been marked out since early July, yet the repair still requires 
attention.

6. A resident reported that when attempting to report incidents of fly tipping the 
Council’s website directs you to ‘my account’. It is not possible to attach photo’s to 
this system.

The Township and Engagement Officer would report this.

7. A number of concerns were raised about the untidiness of certain parts of Falinge 
Park.

The Township and Engagement Officer would report this.

8. A resident raised concerns about the reduced public transport provision in the Ward.

A Ward Councillor advised he was aware of this problem and would be organising a 
meeting with the bus company in question, local councillors and a Transport for 
Greater Manchester representative.

9. A general discussion took place about the recent traveller encroachment onto the 
Common, close to the ‘road with no name’. Residents were generally pleased how 
quickly the travellers were moved on by the police. It was also commented that it 
would be possibly unlikely that the travellers would return to this specific area 
because of the boggy nature of the ground.

Page 9



92 UPDATES ON ISSUES RAISED AT PREVIOUS MEETINGS
The following updates were provided on issues that had been raised at previous Area 
Forum meetings:

1. Syke Road Traffic Survey

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that a meeting involving 
the Ward Councillors, residents and a highways representative had taken place in 
July to discuss the Syke Road Traffic Survey.

This meeting had been requested by residents following an initial response from 
Highway’s that suggested that the traffic survey would be of no benefit.

After discussion it was agreed that Highways would give consideration to:

- The possible introduction of 20mph signage on Syke Road and Dewhirst Road 
with speed humps at the bottom and top of Syke Road.

- The possible introduction of double yellow lines at the junctions abutting Syke 
Road.

- Repairing the potholes on Syke Road

          The Township and Engagement Officer was aware that the proposed 
          action’s, identified above had been assigned to officers. However  
          progress on these issues was not known. 

          The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this  
          further.

2. Syke Pond

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that a Syke Pond 
Steering Group Meeting had taken place in August following a request at the last 
Area Forum meeting. Ward Councillors, residents and Council Officers attended.

Following discussion it was agreed that:

- The Syke Pond project is progressed on the basis of Option 1 in the draft 
feasibility study.

- The project be managed in two phases. Phase one would concentrate on making 
good the stone paving and surrounds of the pond. Phase 2 would concentrate on 
the footpaths leading to and from the pond.

- Health and Safety would be asked to visit the pond to undertake a safety 
assessment.

- The Asset Management Group would be informed of the project and be 
requested to offer financial support.

Page 10



- A report would be produced for Rochdale Township Committee seeking financial 
support for the project.

- An investigation be undertaken to ascertain if the footpaths on Syke Common are 
designated rights of way.

- An investigation be undertaken to see if the Syke Common area can be 
designated a conservation area.

- The maintenance issues in relation to the Syke Pond islands be reported.

           The Township and Engagement Officer was aware that a Health and 
           Safety representative had visited the site and had agreed that 
           work was necessary, the Conservation Officer had been made aware  
           of the request for conservation status and the maintenance issues in 
           relation to the Syke Pond islands had been reported.

3. Parking on the Common

The Forum was advised that investigations into the status of the historical parking 
bays on the Common was ongoing. Estates and Land Registry were currently 
looking into this matter.

4. Speeding on Mizzy Road / Heights Lane

Financial support for the introduction of traffic calming measures in the above vicinity 
has now been secured. 

5. Parking problems adjacent and opposite Syke Methodist Chapel

The Forum was advised that highways had undertaken a desktop tracking exercise 
which indicated that the introduction of ‘chevron’ type parking bays would prohibit 
buses using the turning circle. As a consequence highways would not support this 
project.

Some Forum members contested this advice and a Ward Councillor agreed to 
challenge this decision.

6. Would Greater Manchester Police be undertaking an exercise with Healey residents 
in relation to the problems experienced with traveller encampments on the Common.

It is unlikely that an event will be organised. The meeting held recently aimed at 
Greenbank Road residents was organised on the basis of the recent traveller 
encampments on the Greenbank Road / Cronkeyshaw Road area of the Common.

7. Investigate the cost of undertaking a traffic survey on Shawclough Road.

The cost of a survey would be £750. Area Forum Sub-Group members have 
subsequently supported this project.

Page 11



8. Grass opposite Healey Pub needs cutting.

Grass has been cut.

9. Edge of Common needs cutting

Grass has been cut.

10.Policy on returning waste bins after they have been emptied

Operatives are informed to return bins to pick up point. The Forum was advised to 
report consistent breaches of this.

93 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCES AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
HELD ON 9 JUNE 2016
Apologies had been received from Andrew Neilson.

The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 9th June 2016 were approved as 
a correct record subject to the following changes:

Remove: Fencing at One Ash Close is damaged and potentially dangerous.

Minute should read: Fencing on the alleyway adjacent to One Ash Close is damaged and 
potentially dangerous.

Remove: Is there any update on introducing bye-laws on the Common to deter 
unauthorised traveller encampment.

Minute should read: Is there any update on the work that is being undertaken on local bye-
laws to see if they can influence the way travellers are dealt with.

94 MATTERS ARISING FROM THOSE MINUTES NOT LISTED AS AGENDA ITEMS
A resident referred to the discussion that took place at the previous meeting in relation to 
amendments being made to minutes.

He commented that he had received an email from the manager of the Township team that 
suggested, in his view that significant amendments required to minutes should be included 
in the minutes they are pertinent to.

The Township and Engagement Officer suggested that the term ‘significant’ was open to 
interpretation and that the email received by the resident also made this point.

The Chair concluded that issues in relation to minutes had been discussed at length at a 
previous meeting and the Forum had agreed a way forward. The Chair also indicated that 
any future issues regarding minutes should be addressed to her in the first instance.

95 HEALTHWATCH ROCHDALE
Elaine Grace, Community Engagement Officer, attended the meeting to inform the Forum 
of the role and purpose of Healthwatch Rochdale.

The Forum was informed that Healthwatch Rochdale (HWR) is the local consumer 
champion of Health and Social Care Services. HWR have statutory powers to ensure that 

Page 12



the voice of the general public is heard and can carry out announced and unannounced 
visits to service providers.

HWR gathers feedback from the general public about their experiences of Health and 
Social Care services. HWR collate and analyse the feedback received from the general 
public and report this to the Clinical Commissioning Group, the Local Authority and other 
service providers both locally and nationally.

HWR provides a signposting service, an independent complaints advocacy service, 1-2-1 
conversations with staff and drop in sessions across the four Townships. 

HWR had recently been involved in projects in relation to GP Surgeries and has undertaken 
an ‘enter and view’ exercise on Ward 7 at Fairfield Hospital.

Further information about HWR can be found at www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk

96 MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
The Forum was informed that the following monies were available to the Ward:

Members Funds: 1 x £1274 – 1 x £2000 – 1 x £2000

Ward Funds: £7250. Since the previous meeting £750 had been allocated to the 
Shawclough Road traffic survey.

Environmental Issues Fund: £3003

Forum members were encouraged to think of projects / initiatives for the Ward that could be 
supported from the above funds. Any suggestions should be forwarded to the Township 
and Engagement Officer. Suggestions put forward will be discussed at the next Forum 
meeting.

97 COUNCILLORS' NEWS
The Forum was informed of the following issues:

- Town Centre development is continuing. One objective of this is to improve the Town 
Centre’s night time economy.

- The Gracie Fields memorial statue will be unveiled on the 18th September. Further 
details on this event and other Gracie Field events are available on the Council 
website.

- Rochdale has the largest numbers of apprentices in Greater Manchester.

- A number of former Councillors including ex Healey Ward Councillors received 
Honorary Alderman Awards at a recent Council ceremony for their services to the 
Borough.

- Telegraph house is to be demolished

- A heritage weekend has been organised for this weekend (10 / 11 September 2016). 
Further details of this event are available on the Council website.

Page 13

http://www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk/


- A Rochdale literature festival has been arranged for the 21 – 23 October. Further 
details about this event are available on the Council website.

- The library at Number One Riverside is open on a temporary basis at present. It will 
hopefully be fully re-opened during October.

Residents raised the following issues:

1. What is happening to Beales

Response: It is closing.

2. Skateboard activity in the Town Centre is increasing and young people are sitting in 
shop door ways.

Response: This is being observed / monitored

3. Has anything been planned for the open space in Number One Riverside.

Response: Due to the damage caused by the floods, unsure if any progress had 
been made.

98 GOOD NEWS FROM PEOPLE IN THE AREA AND SYKE COMMUNITY BASE
The Chair reported that the partnership between Syke Community Base and Syke Chapel 
would be known as Syke Connection. The production of business plans, securing funding 
and making changes to the Chapel are priorities for the partnership.

The Chair informed the Forum that Members of the 32nd Rochdale Rangers are planning to 
visit Mexico next year to assist with a number of community action projects. To help 
undertake this visit a fundraising – Mexican Cantina – evening has been planned for the 
17th September. Forum members were encouraged to attend this event.

The Township & Engagement Officer agreed to send an application form to the group 
regarding the possibility of financial support.

99 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
8th December 2016
Syke Community Base, Syke Methodist Chapel, Syke Road
6.30pm

Page 14



NORDEN AREA FORUM

Wednesday 14 September 2016
Norden Community Primary School, Shawfield Lane,

Norden, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: N. Morrell (Chair), J & J Newcombe, P.Fletcher, P. Ellison, D. Brett, J.Watson, 
C. Brandford, I. Sturrock, B. Paulinski, J.Oliver, B.Greenwood, J. Atkinson, B.Pickup, J.Lingard, 
R.Booth, J & J Kershaw, G & M Newnham, C.McHugh, T. Marsy, A.Whatmough and S.Croke

Officers: R. Hudson (RBC - Township), Diane Lodwig (Community Safety) and PCSO 
Christine McCarthy (GMP)

Councillors: Winkler, Gartside and Holly

Apologies: S. Davison and P. Best

1. INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair introduced himself and officers present, and welcomed all to the meeting.  He referred to 
the code of conduct and asked all to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.

2. MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2016 were approved as a correct record.

Township in Bloom
The Chair praised the efforts of the village stating it had ‘done itself proud’ on judging day.

Former Turner Bros Site
An Open Evening will be held on Thursday 22 September 2016 at Spotland Methodist Church 
between 4-9pm.  Invite letter was made available to forum attendees.

Black Pits Chimney
No formal planning application has been submitted by Redrow.

Village Plan
The next meeting about the Village Plan will be on Saturday 17 September 2016 at 1pm.  The Chair 
expressed his gratitude to Martin Newcombe for his efforts in respect of this plan so far.

Moss Row
Residents are liaising with the Environmental Management Department as the land is still under the 
ownership of the Council.

Rainshore Mill/Over Town Lane, Norden
Residents complained about parked trucks on Edenfield Road.

Woodyard Garage
Councillor Winkler updated that the new owners may be wishing to submit a new planning 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



application for a change of use of opening hours and urged residents to express their views if in 
opposition to this proposal.

Norden Stores
Councillor Winkler updated that the new owners may be wishing to submit a new planning 
application for a change of use of opening hours and urged residents to express their views if in 
opposition to this proposal.

Reservoir
A resident complained they had seen water discolouration, appearing blue in colour.  Checks have 
been made with United Utilities and the reservoir was inspected.  The discolouration occurs due to a 
bloom of natural blue and green algae that increasing climate temperatures bring on.  The foam that 
can sometimes occur is a result of a run-off from the moors and is a by-product after a heavy 
downpour.

Hutchinson Road Play Equipment
The date for the start of new works is 26 September 2016.  Completion by 28 October 2016.  The 
zip wire was recently replaced and has been vandalised again.  The equipment was disabled for six 
weeks.  Councillor Winkler expressed frustrations at the length of time the area was out of action for 
the local children.

Footpaths
Update from John Oliver
‘I praise the excellent work of the Council’s Environmental Department over the past three month 
period since meeting in June.  During this time the Environmental Department has completed 
maintenance and repair work to 75 footpaths, bridges and stiles.  During August the department put 
in place a programme of work which will deal with requests for signage and minor repairs on an 
area by area basis.  The Chair of the forum thanked the local Councillors and the efforts of Council 
Officer Ian Trickett.

Ashworth Road
The Ashworth Road area is experiencing fly tipping occurrences which have increased dramatically 
in recent months and it is becoming an ongoing issue.  Remedial/preventative action is being 
sought.  The Chair thanked P. Ellison and his associate for their recent efforts in respect of retrieval 
of large tipped material from down in the valley off Ashworth Road.  A community meeting with 
Council, Police, etc present may occur in the future to discuss possible actions to combat the 
problems.

Wind Farm Update
John Newcombe updated the forum about the public inquiry that will be heard on 11 October 2016 
for 8 days (between the hours of 10am – 5pm) held at Canal Chamber, Rossendale Borough 
Council, Futures Business Park.  Bacup  OL13 OBB.

It was stressed to the forum the importance of as many local residents as possible attending this 
public inquiry to express their opinions as it is an open door policy.  Councillor Winkler reiterated this 
point as did the Chair who also thanked local people involved so far.  A show of hands vote held at 
the forum will be expressed at the inquiry by the Chair.

Norden Old Library
A resident who previously raised this matter at the forum has requested for the trustees to:
1. Attend the next December forum and introduce themselves
2. Advise the forum of the status of the building
3. Advise the forum of the long term future use of the building

This was requested to occur on an annual basis.
If any resident has concerns relating to the library, email them to nordenoldlibrary@gmail.com

Page 16

mailto:nordenoldlibrary@gmail.com


3. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
PCSO McCarthy informed the forum of the latest crime figures for Norden: 

Burglary: 20
Burglary other: 4
Theft from motor vehicle: 12
Theft of motor vehicle: 1

PACT
Operation Dragster – still ongoing with funding from United Utilities and other groups.  Dates will 
commence in October.
Pub Watch Scheme – no main issues.  Police in regular contact with licensees.
YCA – it has calmed down and is still being monitored.  Low number of calls.  Children throwing 
stones at cars.
Speeding Operations – issues with speeding vehicles is being addressed.  Police will carry out a 
traffic operation in September targeting seatbelts and mobile phones and possibly another in 
October 2016.
Drugs – no issues and any areas are already being patrolled.  Residents need to make the Police 
aware of any issues.
Licensing – no main issues.  Police are in regular contact with licensees.

Any issues can be reported to the Police by ringing 101 as always in these instances.

The forum expressed their gratitude to the Police team.

4. OPEN FORUM
Norden Bus Terminus
Discussion was held by residents regarding the parking restrictions imposed in recent years by the 
Council in this area, particularly double yellow lines and bollards.  Local businessman/owner of The 
Bridge Chippy was in attendance and he advised that local residents and customers had signed a 
petition of over 350 signatures to demonstrate their concerns.  He stated the restrictions are not 
necessary in terms of ‘highway safety’ as advised by Highways as buses no longer use the 
terminus.  He stated the parking bays need waiting restrictions on them and the double yellow lines 
near the hairdressers need removing.  It was commented that Highways took little effort to consult 
local people on their proposals before they were implemented.  The Chair discussed the possibility 
of arranging a sub group in order to engage with Highways and a show of hands at the forum 
showed support for this.

Ashbourne Nursing Home
A resident expressed concerns about the inconsiderate double parking of cars on Ashbourne Road 
adjacent to the Co-op and the Post Office sides of the road which caused major access issues, 
especially to the nursing home.  The matron of the nursing home, A. Whatmough, was also in 
attendance and expressed the same concerns.  A recent incident had occurred regarding an 
ambulance not being able to get down the road to attend to an elderly resident at the home.  The 
paramedics had to abandon the vehicle and walk down to the home.  It was noted that the delivery 
lorries of the Co-op are too large, which also causes problems and this matter has been addressed 
with the store owner by the matron.  Action needs to be taken to possibly erect signage requesting 
people park considerately in order to allow access to the nursing home.

Forsyth Street
A resident advised ‘no parking’ signs have been removed from the street which is causing double 
parking and safety issues as cars have to reverse out onto the main road.  Townships have checked 
with Highways and they have confirmed that they were not responsible for the removal of the signs 
and as such have been instructed to replace.  A request was made for the repainting of the double 
yellow lines.

Page 17



Heap Road
It was reported that the barriers here are damaged and insecure.

5. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday 14 December 2016 at 7.00pm–9.00pm
Norden Community School

Page 18



BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT
COMMUNITY MEETING

Tuesday 20 September 2016
Kirkholt Community Church, Daventry Road, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: C.Mottershead (Chair), P. Colclough, M. Matthews, S. Boardman, H. Sutcliffe, B. 
Harrison, D. Holt, B. Bergin, E. Warburton, M.Wynn, C. Motterhead, C. Wilson, A. Morris and 
L. Mills

Officers: PC Steve Horton (GMP) and R. Hudson (Townships)

Councillors: Kathleen Nickson and Richard Farnell

Apologies: Councillor Meredith and Margaret Wilson

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  Attention was drawn to the code of conduct, a 
summary of which was read out.  All attendees were asked to abide by the code for the duration of 
the meeting.

2. BALDERSTONE & KIRKHOLT COMMUNITY EVENT AND CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWITCH 
ON (COUNCILLOR NICKSON)
Councillor Nickson informed the meeting of the free Christmas tree switch-on event to be held on 
The Strand on Thursday 24 November 2016 at 3.30–6pm (A Christmas party event will be held at St 
Thomas’ Church from 3.30pm and the switch on will take place at 6pm).  The theme this year is 
‘Around the World in Eighty Days’ to reflect the international nature of the local community with food 
and entertainment that acknowledge the diverse cultures.

3. PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Crime
Update on previous off-road bike issues was raised.  In the last six months GMP have been 
targeting mini motors in a plain vehicle, but as stated on previous occasions, GMP are unable to 
pursue the bikes due to riders not wearing helmets.  Officers are well aware of the usual suspects 
on the estate and in the last six months ten people have been arrested for having no insurance, 
some have been arrested for no licences and also disqualified drivers.  Most cases have been to 
court resulting in heavy fines and points on their licence/suspended sentences.  Cars are also 
stopped and checked if suspect.  GMP has been working in partnership with local housing 
associations to make visits to properties.  As a result the frequency of reports has dropped recently 
as it seems the message has been getting across.

Oldham Road vehicle crime has seen a reduction due to high profile policing along this stretch of 
road.  As a result there have only been four incidents in the past three months.

No anti-social behaviour has been reported at the new skate park facility.

Statistics for the ward (past three months, 18 June-18 September 2016, compared to last 
year)

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Burglary dwellings - Reduced by 30%
Burglary others – Increase of 7% (only equates to one more occurrence)
Criminal damage – Increased by 34%
ASB – Decreased by 24%
Vehicle crime – Decrease of 24%

A resident questioned the delay in calls being answered on GMP’s 101 line as she experienced a 20 
minute wait.  PC Horton apologised but urged residents to still report all crimes.

GMP praised the efforts and hard work of the community and the committee relating to the 
installation of the skate park, stating it is an excellent asset to the community.

Due to recent reports of pupils from St Cuthbert’s ‘rampaging’ in the area of Crompton Avenue, the 
matter has been dealt with by the PCSO and a PC will pay a visit to the school next week.  GMP 
has good communications with the teachers and management at the school.

The meeting was advised all GMP staff now have either a mobile phone device or tablet which is 
connected to the Police station; this will enable reports to be compiled without necessity for officers 
to go back to the station.

Surgeries are held at the Kirkholt Drop-in Centre every 2 weeks on a Tuesday 10-11am

4. COUNCILLOR UPDATE
Councillor Nickson
Councillor Nickson informed the meeting she held the position of Vice Chair of Governors at St 
Cuthbert’s High School.  She advised if the public have matters to discuss with the school, they 
should always ring the school direct for an immediate response.  Councillor Nickson reminded 
residents to fill in their high school choice forms as they are due to be submitted imminently to the 
Local Authority.

Councillor Nickson spoke about her considerable casework recently concerning neighbour 
nuisance.  She urged residents to contact the Council for early referral to access services to assist if 
they experience neighbour nuisance.

Councillor Nickson reported on her recent attendance at the Pennine Trust Scrutiny Group who are 
tasked with organising better health services/experiences for the public.  She urged residents to 
advise her of any concerns as she would act as their representative and advise the group of the 
issues.

Councillor Farnell
Councillor Farnell updated the meeting on the change in the Council’s alley gating policy.  
Objections to alley gates must exceed 20% of those questioned to stop installation.  He advised 
new gates will soon be erected on Schofield Street/Well I’ th’ Lane.

The pedestrian ‘puffin’ crossing on Queensway near Daventry Road is now finished.  Daventry 
Road will now re-open and he confirmed resurfacing works have been completed.

Shaw Road – a planning application for two houses to be built on greenbelt land will be heard at the 
Planning Committee next week.  Officers have recommended the application for refusal.

The Council has allocated a budget of £300k to repair broken gullies.  Work will start in November 
on repairs and also the jetting/cleaning of these gullies.

Kirkholt Bowling Club has secured £44k for a new roof, as the existing roof was leaking, and the 
funds will provide improved disabled facilities/access.  The club is an asset to the local community 
with many young children attending the facility.

Page 20



The redevelopment of The Strand has been delayed due to relocating issues for the chip shop and 
chemist.  Hopefully the demolition will commence over summer with a final completion in approx 12-
18 months.  The new facility will house a state of the art community hub to create a base for 
everyone on the estate, flats and shop units.  Works for the three storey build will start early next 
year and cost £7 million.  Councillor Farnell informed the meeting the dentists have relocated to 
Queens Drive and the chip shop and pharmacy are on the first block.  The middle and the top block 
will then be demolished

Councillor Farnell advised he is in advanced talks with health bodies about the future health centre 
which will be a fantastic new facility.

Friends of Balderstone Park – the new houses built on the Broad Lane site are selling well and 
Section 106 monies of £500k will be used to invest in the library, community café and also carry out 
improvements to the park.

Balderstone Skate Park is an excellent project and a great asset to the local community.  No 
complaints have been received.

Former Hill Top School Site –Three streets are to be named after national painters; Lowry, 
Constable and Stubbs.

Balderstone School Site – Gleeson’s are buying the land and planning permission will be submitted 
for 250 houses which will be classed as affordable homes (2/3 bedrooms).

Back of Oldham Road/Perth Road – The land is Council owned and the Council’s Clean & Green 
Team have cleared it and the area will be part of a regular maintenance schedule now.

New fencing has been installed at the flats at the bottom of Balderstone Road.

Councillors have funded new lawn mowers to service Arnold Bagnall Court as well as providing a 
welcome party to residents.

A road will be named after the former soldier Conrad Cole near to Kildare Crescent.

Works will commence on Hill Top Drive in 6-12 months which will ease congestion along the road.

5. PRESENTATIONS/UPDATES
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale Circle (Mark Wynn)
The meeting was informed about the service provided that operates across Rochdale, Heywood, 
Middleton and Pennine villages.  HMR Circle is a membership organisation that was created by 
people who wanted to find new and unique ways to do more and to lead a flourishing life.

The monthly calendar has a whole range of exciting social events including meals, day trips, 
theatre, dancing, quizzes, concerts, and much more - all taking place across the borough in different 
venues.  Membership includes access to HMR Circle’s network of local Helpers: friendly and vetted 
local people who can help with gardening, cleaning, technology and odd jobs around the house.

Kirkholt Million
Linda Mills, the new chair or the Kirkholt Million, gave an update on the Project.

Skate Park
Good News – the Skate Park had an amazing and brilliant opening.  Thanks to all the team behind 
it.  What an excellent job has been done.

Page 21



Development
Kirkholt Million has now appointed Amanda in a part-time job role as Community Engagement 
Officer to work with voluntary community groups and residents of Kirkholt.

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing
Kevin Johnson sent his apologies.  Should any residents have any updates/issues, the Township 
Officer can always email them through to him and he will assist.

Updates from Kevin Johnson

 Tree outside 104-106 Balderstone Road – Residents advised at the last meeting that a branch 
has fallen off this tree and also property gutterings adjacent are getting full of leaves – can this 
be addressed?  UPDATE – RBH had the trees roots ground down recently and the path 
resurfaced.  Kevin will email the Council to ask for the trees to be trimmed back.

 3 Hill Top Drive – Concerns were raised at the last meeting about two trees at the front of the 
property that have grown extensively and now blocking out light – can this issue be looked at?  
UPDATE – RBH will keep attempting to contact the owners to resolve this matter.

6. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a true record.

7. OPEN FORUM
Access to Springhill Playing Fields
Residents raised concerns about Springhill Playing Fields being fenced off and gated by the football 
club that denies the public access to the land.  The club states the reason for these measures is dog 
fouling.  The group of residents have attended the meeting to gather support and they advised a 
petition containing over 200 signatures will be presented to the Rochdale Township Committee this 
week.  The residents stated they did not oppose the football club maintaining and improving the land 
or erecting fencing, only that they had restricted public access.  Clarification was sought from the 
Council/Councillors on the status of the land on Crompton Avenue.

Councillor Farnell commented that a number of residents had already approached him concerning 
this issue and he is making enquiries with both the football club and also the Council’s Estates 
Department.  The legal status of the land needs clarifying, as does the specifics on the lease.  Once 
this information is known, both parties need to work together to try and come to some form of 
compromise which will meet both the needs of the dog walkers and children and also the football 
club.  Councillor Farnell stated if not for the very small minority of irresponsible dog walkers, this 
matter would not have arisen.  The residents stated they are monitoring the incidents of dog fouling 
on the site.

8. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 13 December 2016 at 6.30pm
Venue: St Mary’s (Balderstone) Church, Oldham Road, Rochdale

Page 22



MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH AREA FORUM
Monday, 26 September 2016

MINUTES

Present: Y. Bhater, Z. Ingan, S. Begum, M. Sajid, P. Iqbal, A. Raul, Hayeeb, A. Malik, S. Kaller, 
A. Ahmed, U. Shafeq, Z. Ahmed, N. Barron, J. Beasley, I. Ulhaq, F. Begum, J. Begum,       

K. Aziz, M. Nasir, K. Shakil, A. Mehmood, S. Shakeel, M. Shahid (Chair), T. Habib, I. Ullah, 
G. Shahzad, A. Newaz (Vice Chair), W. Mohammad, A. Ahmed, S. Mahmood,  M. Hassan, 
M. Abdullah, N. Aslam, A. Beasley, R. Shammum, S. Ahmed, S. Pevier, K. Akilia, Farhan, 
Faisal, Mohsia, R. Aslam, M. Saleem, S. Iqbal, J. Waheed, G. Jabeen, M. Hussain, Maniza 
Si, A. Khan, Z. Bibi, S. Ali, M. Mughal, M. Shub, S. Muhhton, M. Azunn, M. Younas, M. 
Yasin.

Officers: PS. Shirazi, PC Wright, PCSO Aziz, PCSO Nasir.and G. Finch (Township & Engagement 
Officer)

Councillors: Councillors Zaheer and S. Ali

Apologies: Councillors Zaman and Brett, and Azizul Hoque.

61 INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
The Township and Engagement Officer welcomed everyone to the meeting. It was 
explained that the meeting would be in two parts; part one would be the Annual General 
Meeting which would see the election of the Area Forum Chair and Vice Chair for the next 
twelve months. Part two would be the ordinary meeting, concentrating upon the PACT and 
Open Forum.

The Forum was reminded about the Code of Conduct and asked to comply with the code 
throughout the meeting.

Apologies had been received from Councillors Zaman and Brett and Azizul Hoque.

62 ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR
The Chair of the Forum Ghulan Shahzad informed the Forum that he would not be seeking 
re-election. He thanked the Forum for their support over the last twelve months.

Mohammed Shahid was elected Chair of the Forum until September 2017 and took the 
Chair at this point.

Ahmed Nawaz was elected Vice Chair of the Forum until September 2017

63 MINUTES OF AGM HELD ON 14 SEPTEMBER 2015
The minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on the 14th September 2015 were 
approved as a correct record.

64 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
Sergeant Shirazi, PC Wright and PCSO’s Aziz and Nasir attended the meeting for this item.

At the previous Area Forum meeting residents asked that the PACT meeting should be 
organised separately from the Area Forum meeting. It was also commented that the format 
of the PACT meeting could be more effective.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Although no progress had been made in making alternative arrangements for the PACT 
meeting GMP representatives asked what changes the community would like to see to the 
session to make it more effective.

Following discussion it was generally agreed that:

- Statistical reporting of incidents is not enough.
- GMP should provide more detail behind the statistics
- A more active interaction between GMP and the Forum was required.

GMP reported that:

- The homeless man who was known locally as the ‘gas man’ (Neil Dearden) had died 
recently.

A resident informed the Forum that a ‘Just Giving’ web page had been set up to help 
with funeral costs.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate the process involved to 
initiate a ‘paupers funeral’.

- There had been 9 arrests on Boundary Street for drug related offences.

- A car chase on Cecil Street resulted in a large amount of heroin being secured.

-  Various operations had taken place in connection with prostitution in the area.

Residents asked if it would be possible to name and shame the clients of 
prostitutes?

GMP commented that this could possibly be done once a conviction had been 
secured, however GMP’s strategy on this would be investigated.

GMP also commented that their approach in dealing with prostitutes in the first 
instance is to provide support as the lifestyles of many involved in this work is 
complex and chaotic and requires assistance from many services. 

- GMP informed the Forum that a car chase and subsequent crash had recently taken 
place in the Ward.

Some residents were aware of this and commented that changes needed to be 
made to the highway network in the Ward. The sharp bend on Milkstone Road / 
Tweedale Street was identified as a particular problem.

- A traffic operation was planned to be carried out in the Ward in the near future.

Residents raised the following concerns:

- Drug dealing within the Ward

- A resident asked why the police follow ‘cash in transit’ vehicles?

Page 24



GMP responded that this happens because ‘cash in transit’ services are vulnerable 
and a potential target.

- A resident asked what GMP’s strategy to the ‘Prevent’ agenda was as a concern had 
been raised about GMP’s approach.

GMP could not comment on individual cases but suggested that the resident might 
want to discuss this in private.

- A resident asked why the petition about anti-social behaviour on Lucknow Street that 
was presented at the previous Area Forum meeting had not been acted upon.

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he had been 
informed that no reports had been logged about anti-social behaviour on Lucknow 
Street therefore it was not recognised as a hotspot area. As a consequence no 
action had been taken.

The Forum was also reminded that it was crucial that criminal activity was reported 
on the appropriate numbers, supported with as much information and detail as 
possible. Doing this would build up a picture of what was going on in the Ward and 
enable GMP to react accordingly.

GMP agreed to speak to the resident in private to discuss this matter further.

- The lack of progress being made with introducing a Homewatch scheme.

GMP would investigate this further.

- A resident informed the police that her daughter had recently been approached on 
Manchester Road by a man.

The resident was advised to speak to the police in private following the meeting.

65 MINUTES FROM LAST AREA FORUM MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
The minutes of the Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum held on Monday 14th September 
2016 were approved as a correct record subject to the following addition:

1. A forum member reported that Castlemere Community Centre is playing loud music 
until the early hours of the morning and that this is having a negative impact on 
properties close by.

The Township and Engagement Officer provided the following updates:

1. Madina Cash & Carry cash machine – 

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that planning permission 
had been refused for the cash machine and that an enforcement notice had been 
served.

Page 25



2. Library – Number One Riverside

The Forum was informed that it was hoped that the Library at Number One Riverside 
would be open in October.

3. Religious requirements for the new cemetery

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he had passed on 
the concerns that had been raised at the previous  forum meeting about the 
perceived lack of consultation between the Rochdale Council of Mosques and local 
Muslim communities in relation to religious requirements for the new cemetery.

The Forum was informed that meetings had been held to understand the concerns 
raised and that progress had been made. 

4. The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he had spoken to 
the resident and a planning representative with regards to the planning application at 
3 Philip Street.

5. The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he had spoken to a 
planning representative in relation to the planning application regarding the land to 
the side of 90 Durham Street. A response had been sent to the resident.

6. The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he was aware that 
the Youth Service where looking at ways to encourage / involve young people in the 
work of the Forum.

The following matters were raised by residents:

1. A resident raised concerns about the lack of progress being made to the request to 
introduce a one-way system on Exeter Street. It was believed that a one-way system 
would assist with the problems being experienced in the area associated with 
congestion and speeding.

It was explained that highway related issues are problematic in many parts of the 
borough and that changes to the existing highways network would require a Traffic 
Regulation Order, which can be a lengthy and expensive process. 

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this request.

2. A resident asked what the current situation was regarding the double yellow lines on 
Manchester Road (Old).

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

3. Stoneyfield Park

A resident asked if any progress had been made with developing Stoneyfield Park.

It was explained that a meeting had been held some months ago where it was 
indicated that it would be beneficial for a ‘Friends of Stoneyfield Park’ group to be 

Page 26



established and a constitution to be developed. This could help with attempts to 
access funding streams.

The Township and Engagement Officer was unaware if any progress had been 
made.

66 OPEN FORUM
The following issues were raised during the open forum:

1. A resident asked if the bushes / green area on Cheltenham Street could be tidied up. 
Rochdale Environmental Action Group agreed to do this.

2. Residents asked why barriers (concrete blocks) had been placed in Broadfield Park 
close to the St Albans Street entrance.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this.

3. A resident asked if a car parking spot could be introduced adjacent to the fire station 
yard.

The Township and Engagement Officer would investigate further.

4. A resident suggested that more needs to be done to promote Area Forum meetings.

5   A lengthy discussion took place about highways issues within the  
     Ward with concerns being raised about the lack of progress that is 
     made after problems are identified. 

           The Forum was informed that community frustrations can be
           understood in relation to matters of this nature, however changes to 
           the highways network can be a  lengthy and expensive process. It 
           should also be understood that targeting individual streets and dealing 
           with them in isolation does not always have the desired effect. At times 
           it is necessary that a bigger picture perspective is taken. Changes to 
           parking restrictions on Station Road, Tweedale Street and Milkstone 
           Road where cited as an example.

6 A resident commented that a tree of Eastbourne Street required attention as it was 
encroaching onto adjacent properties.

The Township and Engagement Officer was aware of this problem and had seen 
Environmental Management’s response which indicated this request would have to 
go on a waiting list.

7 A resident asked if the Council would be aware that ex-offenders are living in a St 
Vincent’s Housing Association property on William Street.

Although the Township and Engagement Officer could not be certain that the Council 
had knowledge of this it was extremely possible that the Council and partners who 
deal with ex-offenders would be aware of the situation.

Page 27



8 A resident reported that the road surface on Great George Street was in need of 
urgent attention.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this and reminded residents 
that potholes can be reported via the Ward Councillors, Township Office or online.

67 WELCOME TO ROCHDALE - BIRTH PLACE OF THE CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENT 
SIGNAGE
A resident asked if consideration could be given to introducing signage, adjacent to 
Rochdale Railway Station / Metrolink stop welcoming people to Rochdale. 

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to forward this request onto the appropriate 
service.

68 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Monday 5th December 2016
Deeplish Community Centre
6.30pm – 8.30pm

Page 28



SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
Thursday, 29 September 2016

MINUTES

Present: B. Holden, A. Foster, S. Ashworth, D. Clayton, J. Moss, A. McDermott, D. Phillips, Mr & 
Mrs Forden, Mr. Le Monnier, P. Massey (Chair), F. Nissar, U. Rahman, M. Rashid (Vice Chair), S. 
Whitworth, P. Barker, V. Sommerville, A. Sommerville, S. Mitchell, D. Holden, J. Ingham, A. Bibby, 
E. Phillips, K. Massey, R. Le Monnier, D. Hallows, K. Salisbury, J. Addy, J. Nawaz, Mr & Mrs 
Ashurst, K. Lawrence, B. Penty, M. Oliver, D. Kay, H. Kay, M, Coates, P. Salisbury, A. Rawsterne, 
S. Hussain, N. Hussain and E. Chadwick.

Officers: PC Butterworth (GMP), G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer) and N. Rogers 
(Service Manager – Rochdale Borough Council)

Councillors: C. Biant, S. Biant and W. Cocks

Apologies: Mr & Mrs Fleming, C.Faulkner, J. Newcombe and A. Meek

55 WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The Township and Engagement Officer welcomed everyone to the meeting. It was 
explained that the meeting would be in two parts; part one would be the Annual General 
Meeting which would see the election of the Area Forum Chair and Vice Chair for the next 
twelve months. Part two would be the ordinary meeting, concentrating upon the PACT and 
Open Forum.

The Forum was reminded about the Code of Conduct and asked to comply with the code 
throughout the meeting.

Apologies had been received from Mr & Mrs Fleming, Carl Faulkner, John Newcombe, R. 
Le Monnmier.and A. Meek.

56 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR & VICE CHAIR 
Following nominations and voting the following residents where appointed Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Area Forum for the next twelve months:

Chair – Mr Philip Massey
Vice Chair – Mr Mohammed Rashid.

57 MINUTES OF THE LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF 20 AUGUST 2015
P. Massey took the Chair at this point.

The minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on the 20th August 2015 were agreed as a 
correct record.

58 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
PC Butterworth attended the meeting for this item.

The following information was reported:

- A prolific offender in the Ward had recently been sentenced to prison.

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



- During the last three months incidents of crime in relation to theft of motor vehicles 
and theft from motor vehicles had reduced.

- An operation in relation to off-road biking would be taking place in the Ward on the 
8th & 9th October.

Residents raised a number of concerns regarding anti-social behaviour in the Ward. 
Holmes Street was identified as particularly problematical. GMP acknowledged they were 
aware of this and stated they had visited the abandoned vehicle that had been reported in 
the street.

59 MINUTES OF LAST AREA FORUM MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 16th June 2016 were approved 
as a correct record. 

The following updates were provided:

- Pocket of land on Spotland Road

Following a query raised by a resident about a pocket of land on Spotland Road that 
had been fenced off which the resident believed obstructed the right of way the 
Forum was informed that the desire line across the piece of land was not a right of 
way. The area has been enclosed because it is not a footpath and the Council had 
received claims from members of the public who had allegedly injured themselves 
whilst crossing the land.

- Additional bins – Churchill Street

Financial support had been agreed for the placement of additional bin and the 
request was being progressed.

- Prickshaw Dam

A resident informed the Forum that the Council had been contacted regarding a leak 
at the Dam. Consultation was ongoing.

- Churchill Street bollards

Financial support had been agreed for the placement of additional bollards near to 
Meanwood School to improve safety. This request was being progressed.

- Hedges on Ings Lane

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

- Ullswater Avenue – Ings Lane – Alleygates

The Forum was informed that this particular section is not suitable for alleygates. 
The area is also owned by Rochdale Boroughwide Housing.

Page 30



- Hudson Walk – Double yellow lines

The Forum was informed that the resident who raised this issue had subsequently 
attended Rochdale Township Committee to express her concerns. 

- Meanwood School Fencing

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that agreement had 
been reached with Health and Safety regarding the safety concerns raised in relation 
to the removal of the finial points. An estimate had now been received for the 
restoration work and it was planned to seek financial support for the project at the 
next Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee in November 2016. 
Environmental Management had also identified a proposed site in Denehurst Park 
for the re-siting of the fencing.

- Dellar Fold / Dellar Street – introduction of a barrier / bollards

The Township & Engagement Officer informed the Forum that the covenant could be 
removed from the accessway on Dellar Street. However the process to remove can 
be lengthy, time consuming, complex and potentially expensive. In addition at any 
time during the process the application to remove the covenant can fail if an 
objection to its removal is received. Financial support to progress this proposal would 
more than likely have to be sought from already limited Township funds.

The Forum was also informed that based on the feelings expressed at the last Area 
Forum meeting and the fact that the school did not believe that installing a barrier / 
bollards would improve safety for children no further progress would be made with 
this request.

A traffic survey for Dellar Street / Churchill Street was also being progressed.

- Proposed skate park suggestions

The proposed skate park suggestion made at the previous Area Forum meeting had 
been passed to Environmental Management.

- Members / Ward Funds

The Forum was informed that at the beginning of the financial year (April) there was 
£8000 in Ward Funds and each Ward Councillor had an allocation of £2000.

At the time of the meeting the following amounts were available:

£7387.72 remained in Ward Funds (Churchill Street bollards - £297.28 & Churchill 
Street litter bin - £315).

Councillor C. Biant had £1574.68 remaining (Greave Play Scheme - £425.32)

Councillor S. Biant had £1050 remaining (Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 
Launch Event - £950)

Councillor W. Cocks had £2000 remaining.

Page 31



The Forum was encouraged to put forward ideas for projects / initiatives that could 
be supported from Ward / Member funds.

The Chair asked if anyone from the Forum wanted to join the Forum’s Sub Group. 
The purpose of this group is to scrutinise Ward funding applications.

Mr S Ashworth agreed to join the group.

60 OPEN FORUM

Due to the fact that an Officer from Rochdale Borough Council was in attendance at the 
meeting to discuss the Turner Brothers Asbestos site it was agreed to organise the open 
forum in two parts. The first section would deal with general open forum issues, the second 
section would concentrate on TBA specific issues.

General open forum issues
 

- A resident raised concerns about recent Traveller encroachments at a variety of sites 
within the borough and the costs that are incurred by the local authority in dealing 
with issues of this nature.

- Concerns about speeding on Spotland Road, College Road and Primrose Street 
were raised.

The Forum was informed that speeding is a police issue and residents should report 
any incidents of this nature with as much detail as possible. However speeding is a 
difficult issue to control in that the police need to be in the right place at the right time 
to apprehend offenders.

Introducing speed calming measures is an option that can be considered by the local 
authority, however the process can be lengthy and costly.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate if cameras can be fitted 
at specific locations to assist with reducing incidents of speeding.

- A resident informed the Forum that the next Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 
(RMNF) would be held on the 6th October at Spotland Methodist Church 
commencing 7pm.

The Forum was informed that the primary purpose of the RMNF was 
           too share a common purpose and objective to protect and enhance  
           the neighbourhood and to make it an area that is vibrant, socially 
           inclusive, and generally the greenest, safest place to live, work and 
           play that it can possibly be.

- A resident asked if an Environmental Impact Report had been / could be produced 
for the land that is adjacent to Dellar Fold / Dellar Street and at the junction of 
Edenfield Road / Ings Lane that had recently been sold.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

Page 32



- A Youth Worker introduced himself to the Forum advising that youth workers worked 
in the area every Thursday, 6pm – 9pm.

- Residents expressed concerns about the lack of consultation that had been 
undertaken regarding the removal of the kick pitch on RBH owned land.

- Concerns were raised about flood concerns on Holmes Street.

The Township & Engagement Officer agreed to forward these concerns to the 
Community Flood Resilience Officer.

- Residents raised concerns over the amount of dog fouling on Churchill Street.

The Township & Engagement Officer agreed to report this and request that 
Enforcement Officers visited the area.

TBA open forum issues

           Nicola Rogers, Service Manager Rochdale Borough Council attended 
           for this item.

           The Forum was informed that although the Council does not own the 
           Site, it wants to work with the owner (Renshaw Properties Limited) to 
           find a solution for its future. 

The landowner in consultation with the Council is carrying out a site investigation 
which is looking at potential environmental issues and the future of the site.

The Officer also gave the background to the air quality assessment that commenced 
in August 2015 and is currently ongoing. The monitoring exercise will hopefully be 
completed in October 2016. The results of this exercise will be made public although 
no time frame on this can be given at present.

The following questions/concerns were raised:

Does the Council own any land within the TBA site?

Response: It was confirmed that the Council owns a small strip of land within the 
boundary of the site, although it was unknown how this was acquired.

What are the future plans for the site?

Response: This is unknown at present. Until the results of the current site 
investigations are known it would be inappropriate to speculate on the future use of 
the land. 

What are the next steps if the land is deemed safe?

Response: This cannot be answered at present. The current site investigation will 
enable the landowners to understand the site better in terms of any remediation 
required and the options available. It was accepted that there is asbestos on the 
land, however a statutory determination had not been given to confirm this.

Page 33



           Concerns were raised about the lack of monitoring on the land in the 
           past.

           Response: Although these concerns were understood the site had not  
           been catergorised. There was no evidence that asbestos was leaving 
           the site and harming the health of residents. However the current site 
           investigation on the land and air quality monitoring will help determine 
           the lands current state and possible future use.

Will the land owner make the survey results known to the public?

Response: This cannot be answered at present. The survey has been commissioned 
by the landowners therefore they will decide upon this.

What is the purpose of the project team that has recently been set up?

Response: The purpose of the project team is to facilitate communication between 
the landowners (Renshaw Properties Limited), their representatives and residents in 
relation to the proposed site investigations.

Residents also commented that:

- During 2001 the Unitary Development Plan had identified the site as an area of 
opportunity including housing and shops.

- If the land is eventually abandoned it would become the responsibility of the Crown.

- The Project Team does not include any Elected Members or Area Forum 
representatives. In addition no minutes or notes are made public.

- There is the need for openness and transparency

61 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday 15th December 2016 @ 7pm.
Spotland Methodist Church

Page 34



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP CLEAN AND GREEN 
PRIORITY GROUP

Thursday 22 September 2016
Room Piethorne, First Floor, Number One Riverside,

Smith Street, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: Councillors O’Neill (Chair), Holly, Nickson, Rashid and Howard

N. Afzal (Healthy Food For All – Kellett Street Community Growing Scheme) 
P. Ellison & N. Morrell (Norden Jubilee Park Notice Board)
H. Ahmed (Rinse and Recycle)

Officers: R Hudson (Township Officer)

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
The chair welcomed all to the meeting.

Apologies were received from Councillors Heakin, Hornby, Cocks, Brosnan and Zaheer.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the last meeting were approved as a true record.

No matters arising.

3. GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN
Update provided as a handout by C. Robinson – Overview of the Rochdale Township Green 
Infrastructure Plan

4. GRANT APPLICATIONS
CG/02/16 – Healthy Food for All
An application was received from Kellett Street Community Growing Scheme applying for funds of 
£2,500 after consulting with the Council’s Environmental Management Services, who will carry out 
the necessary works.  Monies will be used to transform an unused plot of derelict land into a vibrant 
community growing scheme.  Funds would facilitate the first phase of works and the creation of a 
new footpath network to enable members and the community to get on-site.  Members agreed to 
approve the application.
Decision: Approved

CG/04/16 – Norden Jubilee Park Notice Board 
An application was received from the Friends of Norden Jubilee Park applying for funds of £2,000 to 
pay for the supply and installation of a notice board in Norden Jubilee Park, Rochdale.  The notice 
board will enable the local community and visitors to the area to have a better appreciation of 
activities/events in the park.  Councillor Gartside has contributed £400 towards the total cost of this 
noticeboard (£2,400) from his Member’s Fund.
Decision: Approved

CG/05/16 – Rinse & Recycle
An application was received for £2,200 from the Pakistani and Kashmiri Community Association to 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



deliver a project to raise awareness about recycling.  This initiative will involve 
workshops/awareness sessions in different areas of the borough to educate people and raise 
awareness about the benefits of recycling efficiently.  It will promote recycling figures and reduce the 
cost of sorting the waste.
Decision: Approved

5. MEMBERS CLEAN & GREEN ISSUES
There were no issues reported.

6. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday 15 December 2016 at 5pm (Room TBC)

Page 36



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITIES AND 
ENGAGEMENT PRIORITY GROUP

Wednesday, 28 September 2016
Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith 

Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

MINUTES

Present: Councillors Wazir (Chair), Nickson (Vice Chair), D. Ali, S. Ali, Cocks, Duckworth, Gartside, 
Rashid and Zaman.

Officers: G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer)

Apologies: Councillors A. Ahmed and Zaheer

18 INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting. It was explained that the group had £12102 
available in its budget and that the maximum amount of financial support an application 
could be awarded was £2000.

Apologies had been received from Councillors Ahmed and Zaheer. Councillors Sultan Ali 
and Zaman where attending the meeting in their role as substitutes for the Group.

19 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority Group held 
on Wednesday 22nd June 2016 were approved as a correct record.

20 GRANT APPLICATIONS
CE/08/16 – BTM GLOBAL LTD – UNITED FOR PEACE – APPLIED FOR £2000

The Group agreed to support this application to the value of £1500.

CE/10/16 – WARDLEWORTH COMMUNITY CENTRE ASSOCIATION – 
WARDLEWORTH COMMUNITY CENTRE YOUTH CLUB – APPLIED FOR £1904.94

The Group agreed to support this application to the value of £1000.

CE/11/16 – PAKISTANI & KASHMIRI COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION – COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT & COHESION THROUGH SPORTS – APPLIED FOR £2841

The Group agreed to support this application to the value of £1500

21 DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS
21st December 2016 at 6pm.
Training & Conference Suite, Floor 1, Number One Riverside.

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



Subject: Community Centre Monitoring Status: Publication

Report to:
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub 
Committee
Middleton Township Devolved Funding & 
Devolved Services Sub Committee
Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub 
Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods & Community

Date:
Tuesday 15 November 2016
Tuesday 15 November 2016
Thursday 17 November 2016
Thursday 17 November 2016

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods Author: Emma Salloway

Author Email:  emma.salloway@rochdale.gov.uk Tel: 01706 924821

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To update Members on the community centre monitoring process for 2016 and inform 
Members of the information received for quarter one (April, May and June) and quarter 
two (July, August and September).

2. Recommendations

2.1 To continue with the current monitoring arrangements.

Reason for recommendation

2.2 Community centres are delivering in relation to the Public Health indicators. Public 
Health team are satisfied and impressed with the work/activities being delivered by 
community centres.

3. Background

3.1 A community centre monitoring process was first implemented in April 2012. This has 
been reviewed, revised and improved on an annual basis. As of April 2016 Public 
Health & Wellbeing contribute 65% of the funding to grant aided community centres 
with Neighbourhood and Community Services providing the remaining 35%. Public 
Health and Wellbeing were consulted on the community centre monitoring process and 
were satisfied this met their requirements pending the addition of Public Health 
indicators to the spreadsheet. There was also a request that a case study with a Public 
Health outcome be added to the process. The following are thus required on a 
quarterly basis from each community centre:

Page 38

Agenda Item 10



 A community monitoring spreadsheet highlighting activities, number of sessions 
and number of people attending. A distinction between whether the activities were 
community developed or private hires. A summary of the funding for each quarter 
is also provided, this will highlight if the centre is reliant on Council funding alone 
or if external funding is also used to deliver the activities.

 A case study to highlight a Public Health outcome.
 A good news story for the quarter.
 An up to date timetable of activities.

Monitoring visits also take place to verify and enhance the community centre 
monitoring process. These are both formal and informal. Monitoring information has 
been received from the following community centres:

 BACP
 Castlemere Community Centre
 Crimblecroft Community Centre
 Deeplish Community Centre
 Demesne Community Centre
 KYP
 Meadowfields Community Centre
 Rochdale Women’s Welfare
 Sparth Community Centre
 Spotland Community Centre
 Wardleworth Community Centre

The community centres form part of the Community Base Network (CBN). They are 
currently working to develop the Rochdale Borough Health & Wellbeing Alliance 
Community Base Network Strategy 2016 –18. The strategy outlines their collective 
vision and aspirations for the future and sets the direction that will influence the 
networks development and decision making over the next three years. It marks the 
latest phase in the success of the Community Base Network.

4. Alternatives considered

4.1 Community Centres could apply for funding in the form of an application form at the 
start of the new financial year. The applications would then be considered by a panel 
who could take a decision on the applications received.

5. Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications from this report.

6. Legal Implications

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

7. Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications from this report.

8. Corporate Priorities

8.1 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council retains Township Committees and will 
devolve a range of services to Township direction, managed through annual Township 
Plans which are reviewed on a quarterly basis.

Page 39



9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 Any withdrawal or suspension of funding could lead to reduced services from a 
community centre.

10. Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Not applicable

Page 40



Subject: Rochdale Blue Plaque Scheme Status:  Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Environment

Date: Tuesday, 15 November 2016
 

Report of: Director of Economy

AuthorEmail: kaija-luisa.kurik@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Kaija-Luisa Kurik

Tel: Tel: 01706924847

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to set out guidance criteria which can be used as a basis for 
making decisions about future nominations for public commemorative blue plaques based in 
the Rochdale Township area.

2 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that Members approve the suggested criteria in this report (see 
Appendix 1), which can be used as a framework and guidance for assessment of blue plaque 
nominations. The rationale and purpose associated with each criteria is outlined, which 
ensures that the guidance criteria is defined and there is a clear purpose.

Reason for recommendation

2.2 Currently, there is no active blue plaque scheme for Rochdale Township. This means 
      that there are no existing criteria which can be used as a basis for assessing requests for 
      blue plaques to commemorate local buildings, people and events. On the 15th 
      September 2015, Pennines Members approved a commemorative plaque scheme for the 
      Pennines Township area. 

2.3 Rochdale Borough Council frequently receives requests for blue plaques from members of 
the public and there is currently no effective and systematic process for determining 
whether to approve such requests in Rochdale Township

2.4 Establishing a blue plaque scheme for Rochdale Township and agreeing criteria   
      which can be used as a basis of assessment will preserve the interests of the blue 
      plaque scheme locally and ensure that decisions about nominations for blue 
      plaques are consistent and are sensitive to the local historical environment.

3 Background

3.1 This report sets out some suggested criteria which can be used as guidance for making 
decisions about nominations for commemorative blue plaques. In light of the number of 
nominations received every year by Rochdale Borough Council, it is felt that decisions could 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11



be made by each of the four townships in relation to nominations based in their respective 
areas. This ensures that there is a local approach to decision-making in place. 

3.2 The report proposes that decisions about blue plaque nominations within the Rochdale 
Township area should be ratified by Rochdale Township Committee. Consequently, decisions 
about whether to approve nominations in this area will be at the discretion of Rochdale 
Elected Members. The purpose of the report is to provide guidance for Rochdale Township 
Members in helping them to make decisions about nominations. The intention is not for the 
criteria to be used as part of a formal process for decision-making, however, and it is 
anticipated that there may be cases where nominations, which do not comply to the criteria 
outlined in the report, are accepted as exceptions. It is also not the purpose of the guidance 
criteria to restrict and limit the number of blue plaque nominations approved, and it is 
recognised that blue plaques have an important role in commemorating local people, events 
and places, providing that they are deemed to be the most effective means of 
commemoration. In essence, the purpose of the criteria is to provide clarity and guidance, 
which will ensure greater scope for effective and systematic decision-making.

3.3 The guidance criteria attached to this report has been developed using English Heritage’s 
guidance criteria, while consideration has also been given to blue plaque schemes used by 
other local authorities. Furthermore, there has been some initial consultation with the Chair of 
Rochdale Township and the feedback from this consultation has also been used to develop 
the attached guidance criteria. 

Alternatives considered

3.4 The alternative option is to continue to have no framework and set of guidance criteria for 
making decisions about blue plaque nominations. If this is to happen, then decisions about 
whether to approve nominations for blue plaques will be made with little consideration to 
consistency and to objective and methodical decision-making. It is important for decisions 
about nominations to be made strategically and systematically, rather than ad hoc, as this 
ensures greater sensitivity to the historical context and built environment. 

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no financial implications or costs identified in this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 No legal implications have been identified as part of this report. 

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 This report relates to Rochdale Council’s commitment towards Place, as the criteria 
impacts on the built environment and quality of place. The report recognises the importance of 
the built environment and the impact that place has for communities and local people. 

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There are no risks identified as part of this report.

Page 42



9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 43



BLUE PLAQUE STRATEGY

Rochdale Township – March 2016

P
age 44



       

Planning and Regulation Services

Directorate of Economy 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale

OL16 1XU

Author: Nick Barton

Telephone: 01706 924847

P
age 45



Rochdale Township Blue Plaque Scheme 

Criteria and principles Rationale

1 Location of plaque installation

1.1 Buildings marked by plaques should be visible from the 
public highway and will normally only be erected on a 
building and not on a boundary wall or gate pier.

This ensures that the blue plaque is visible and 
prominent to the public.

1.2 Plaques should not normally be placed on sites of 
nominated former buildings which have been demolished 
and removed.

Plaques should only be installed and located on 
established buildings. It is difficult to create an 
historical association if there is no building or 
adequate structure to accommodate a blue plaque. 

1.3 It is recommended that commemorative plaques should 
not normally be placed on nationally or locally listed 
buildings. Consideration might be given about how else a 
building might be commemorated, other than through a 
blue plaque. 

This ensures the preservation of listed buildings. A 
listed building has already been recognised for its 
significance, so the installation of a blue plaque is not 
necessary.

2 Nominations of individual figures

P
age 46



2.1 In being awarded a blue plaque, a nominated individual 
associated with a building should have been born in the 
Borough and/or lived in the Borough for a significant 
period of time (5 years or more) and/or have made a 
significant contribution to the Borough. This might include 
making a positive contribution to the life of Rochdale 
Borough. A ‘significant contribution’ might also involve the 
individual being recognised for an ‘outstanding’ act and/or 
receiving a significant local or national award or 
achievement. 

Nominations can also be made if an individual figure is 
considered eminent by members of their profession. 
Where possible, consultation will be made with local 
groups in relation to the merits of the individual. 

This ensures that there is some guidance about what 
merits a successful nomination. However, it is also 
recognised that decisions are still subjective, as there 
can be no criteria about what constitutes a ‘significant 
award or achievement’, for instance. 

2.2 Fictitious characters should not normally be 
commemorated.

This ensures that there are some constraints on what 
merits a successful nomination and that local people 
will be better able to relate to and associate with a real 
person, building or event.  

2.3 Individuals who are nominated for a blue plaque should 
normally have passed away at least 10 years ago.

This ensures greater historical perspective in making 
decisions.

3 Limit on plaques per building

3.1 No more than two plaques on a building is the usual limit. This ensures that a building is not ‘cluttered’ by blue 
plaques. By installing a maximum of two blue plaques, 
this ensures that there is sensitivity to the historical 

P
age 47



context and fabric of the building. 
4 Decisions about nominations

4.1 Decisions about nominations for blue plaques should be 
made within the existing township structure. The 
fulfilment of these guidance criteria does not guarantee 
acceptance of a proposal and decisions about nominations 
for new blue plaques will be entirely at the discretion of 
elected members. 

This enables decisions to be made democratically at a 
local level.

4.2 In making decisions about plaque nominations for 
individuals, an event or a building, Rochdale Council 
officers and committee members should aim to consult 
relevant parties, including professionals (who relate to the 
plaque nomination) and historians, community groups and 
members of the public, where possible.

This enables robust decisions to be made about 
nominations, which considers expert and technical 
advice. It also helps to determine whether there is 
public demand and support for the blue plaque.

4.3 Rochdale Township should not normally accept more than 
2 blue plaque nominations per year.  

A limit on the number of plaques installed every year 
ensures sensitivity is given to the historic environment.

4.4 In being awarded a plaque, a nominated building should 
be recognised nationally, countrywide or locally as being 
of especial significance and worthy of recognition. A 
building might be recognised for its architectural value, its 
historical importance or association with an important 
local individual, for instance. However, where a significant 
building is listed, the criteria outlined in 1.3 of this report 
will be considered.

This allows decisions to be made about buildings which 
merit inclusion as a blue plaque.

P
age 48



4.5 In being awarded a plaque, an historical event should be 
recognised to be of significance in the history of the 
locality, or Borough as a whole. In determining whether an 
event is significant, it may be beneficial for local 
community groups and individuals to be consulted in 
respect of the event. 

This enables decisions to be made about events which 
merit inclusion as a blue plaque, while also providing a 
limit in nomination of events. 

4.6 In determining nominations for commemorative blue 
plaques, other forms of commemoration should also be 
considered, and a decision should be made based on what 
would be most appropriate. 

In considering the most appropriate means of 
commemoration, this ensures that there is 
consideration about the merits of installing a blue 
plaque. There may be instances where other forms of 
commemoration, such as an information board, might 
be deemed to be more appropriate. 

5 Funding

5.1 Members of the public who successfully nominate a blue 
plaque should fund the costs of installation in normal 
circumstances.

This ensures that Rochdale Borough Council is not 
financially obligated to meet the full costs associated 
with the blue plaque – the purchase of the blue 
plaque, costs associated with installation and 
maintenance. 

6 Design

6.1 The blue plaque should be ‘heritage style’. This means that 
is should be blue in colour and round in shape. It is not 
necessary for the same supplier to be used, but future 
blue plaques should share the same dimensions and 

This ensures the uniformity and cohesiveness of 
Rochdale Township’s Blue Plaque Scheme, and would 
result in a consistent approach being employed. The 
new plaques would be identifiable and could be easily 

P
age 49



specifications. The British Plaque Trust provide  design 
specifications which will be used for future blue plaques:

Shape – circular
Dimensions – 38cm diameter
Wording – typeface / illustrations – Succinct text 
Colour – dark blue with white lettering (BS 18E53)
Material – cast aluminium

The image, below, provides an example of a blue plaque 
which is ‘heritage style’: 

recognised as part of a local scheme. 

P
age 50



7 Management and maintenance

7.1 Rochdale Borough Council will, in normal circumstances, 
be responsible for installing new blue plaques, although 
would not be obligated to fund the costs (see Criteria 5.1).

This ensures a consistency in approach, and ensures 
that new blue plaques have the same specification and 
are installed in the same way. 

7.2 Once installed, a community group or individual 
nominating a blue plaque will normally be responsible for 
managing and maintaining it.

This ensures that Rochdale Borough Council / Rochdale 
Township have no obligation to inspect and preserve 
blue plaques which are nominated by public request.

7.3 Rochdale Borough Council reserves the right to remove a 
blue plaque, should it be deemed necessary.

In exceptional circumstances, it may be necessary to 
remove a blue plaque, once installed, and Rochdale 
Council would have the authority to do this. 

8 Review

8.1 The criteria for blue plaques nominations is implemented 
and evaluated by Rochdale Township, as and when 
necessary. 

This will enable criteria to be reviewed and updated, 
as necessary, to reflect changing conditions and 
circumstances.

P
age 51



Title: Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17 Public/Private: For Publication/Not for 
Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Community

Report Author: Sharron Worrall

Date: Tuesday 15 November 2016

Director: Director of Neighbourhoods

Tel: 01706 924802

Author Email:    sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk Key Decision: Yes/No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments and 
balances of Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17 and enable the allocation of funds to 
proposed projects.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Committee notes the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale Township 
revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3.

2.3 Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to proposed 
projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4 Members note the Principal Townships Officer has assessed proposed projects to be 
considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale Township 
Fund, the priorities of the Township and any specific risks have been identified 
(information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5 The Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and 
opposition spokesperson of the Committee, to be given delegated authority to make 
decisions on any deferred projects.

3. Reason for recommendation

3.1 Management of the Rochdale Township Fund is delegated to the Rochdale Township 
Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee.

Page 52

Agenda Item 12



3.2 Rochdale Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s 
community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable the Committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

4. Background

4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of Rochdale 
Township Funds 2016/17 in Appendix 1 and 2.  Actual/committed spend for revenue 
funds is 54.24% and capital funds is 69.84%.

4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale Township 
Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that Members are aware of 
the projects that have been agreed within their Ward.  Members are asked to note the 
decisions made under the delegated arrangements since the last Committee meeting 
in Appendix 3.

4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17.  
Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer the allocation of 
revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in Appendix 4.

4.4 To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2016/17, Members are asked 
to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects to the 
Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition 
spokesperson of the Committee.

5. Alternatives considered

5.1 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the allocation 
of funds to projects as appropriate.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

6.2 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will 
be presented to future Committees.

6.3 Monitoring information will be provided to Public Health concerning its contribution 
towards the funds of Rochdale Township.  Projects that support improved physical, 
mental health and wellbeing of people in our local communities will be identified and 
reported to Public Health.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council has 
made a commitment to consider and endeavor to mitigate the impact on beneficiaries, 
service users and volunteers of any changes to the financial arrangements for the 
voluntary sector and to provide at least three months’ notice of such changes.

8. Personnel Implications

8.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

Page 53



9. Corporate Priorities

9.1 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to meet their 
respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those priorities.  This 
report asks Members to consider how Township Funds 2016/17 are allocated in order 
to do this.

9.2 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council retains Township Committees and will 
devolve a range of services to Township direction, managed through an annual 
Township Plan which is reviewed on a quarterly basis.

10. Risk Assessment Implications

10.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be identified 
for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

11. Equality Impacts

11.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Careful consideration has been given to the potential equality impact of the proposed 
projects.  There are no identified adverse impacts and it is anticipated that the projects 
will benefit all sections of the community.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 54



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2015/16 118,476          33.65% 54.24%

Base Budget 2016/17 185,800          

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 -                     

Total budget for 2016/17 304,276          

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 102,397          

Commitments 62,654            

Total Actual + Commitments 165,051          

Budget Remaining 2016/17 139,225          

Forecast Outturn 304,276          

Potential over/underspend -                     

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2016/17   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17

      £ 

Members Fund -                     54,000      -                       54,000      4,841             6,109            -                 1,455         12,405       41,595        

Ward Fund -                     72,000      -                       72,000      1,680             1,116            -                 11,562       14,358       57,642        

Projects Fund 1,576              19,800      -                       21,376      4,360             4,150            (10,025)       4,500         2,985         18,391        

Clean & Green Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      2,300             -                    -                 4,500         6,800         13,200        

Communities & Engagement Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      4,900             4,998            -                 2,000         11,898       8,102          

Township Allocated Funds (pre 2015/16) 116,900          -                -                       116,900    44,573           39,663          10,025        22,344       116,605     295             

Total 118,476          185,800    -                       304,276    62,654           56,036          -                 46,361       165,051     139,225      

 REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE 18,391      

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 55



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2015/16 29,900       63.11% 69.84%

Base Budget 2016/17 182,000     

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 -                 

Total budget for 2016/17 211,900     

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 133,740     

Commitments 14,250       

Total Actual + Commitments 147,990     

Budget Remaining 2016/17 63,910       

Forecast Outturn 211,900     

Potential over/underspend -                 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2016/17   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17

      £ 

Armed Forces Fund 8,340         -                 -                       8,340          -                   -                 -                 -                -              8,340          

Capital Fund 29,900       182,000     -                       211,900      14,250          500             -                 133,240     147,990   63,910        

Total 38,240       182,000     -                       220,240      14,250          500             -                 133,240     147,990   72,250        

  CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE  63,910       

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 56



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION

Members note the delegated decisions made by the Principal Townships Officer in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson

of Rochdale Township Action & Resources Committee

Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/17/16 Canal art in Castleton Create a mural that will reflect the nature and heritage aspect of 

the canal and Castleton Village on a retaining wall blighted by 

graffiti near the canal that is highly visible to people leaving and 

visiting Castleton via train or walking along the towpath.  A 

professional artist will work with local children and pupils from St 

Edward’s Primary School to agree the layout and paint the mural 

through a series of workshops.  Removal of the graffiti is not 

possible due to the potential of the chemicals contaminating the 

canal water and damaging a national and European protected 

water plant Luronioum Natans.  The project aims to lift the profile 

of the village and combat anti-social behaviour with the 

involvement of local children encouraging their ownership and 

future protection of the mural.  Barratt Homes has agreed to 

match fund the art project.

Castleton £2,500.00 21 September 2016 Awarded £2,500 

from Members 

Fund

M/08/16 Balderstone and 

Kirkholt Community 

Event and Christmas 

Lights Switch On

Community event on Kirkholt estate to bring together residents 

within the Balderstone & Kirkholt Ward on Thursday 24 November 

2016 to coincide with the switch on of the Christmas tree lights.  

St Thomas Church will host the ‘Around the World in Eighty Days’ 

themed event with performances from Clog, Morris & Rapper 

Dancing, Young at Heart Choir, Bollywood/Bhangra dancer and 

Holy Family African Singers plus activities of thematic storytelling, 

craft sessions, face painting and henna art.  Multicultural cuisine 

will be available.  Neighbourhood police will be invited to the event 

to offer advice to residents on community safety operations over 

the winter months.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£1,772.01 23 September 2016 Awarded £1,772.01 

from Members 

Fund

W/51/15 Castleton Festive 

Lighting Features

Supply and installation of festive lighting features on street lighting 

columns 143 and 145 on Castleton Road, Rochdale to enhance 

the Christmas lighting display in Castleton Village

Castleton £1,985.00 26 September 2016 Awarded £1,985 

from Ward Fund

APPENDIX 3

Page 1 of 3

P
age 57



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

CG/02/16 Healthy Food For All Kellett Street Community Growing Scheme propose to transform 

an unused plot of derelict land at the back of terraced housing on 

Kellett Street with an orchard and fruit growing area, bee hives 

and a community greenhouse plus small taster plots for 

individuals.  The land will be transformed with the support of 

members from the community growing scheme society and 

volunteers from the local community. The project will provide an 

opportunity for local people to develop new skills in bee-keeping, 

hard landscaping, wildlife conservation and cultivation of food.  

The vision is for it to become a green haven and local schools and 

community groups will be encouraged to use the space for 

picnics, storytelling, events and activities.  The first phase of the 

project will be the treatment of knotweed and clearance of 

dangerous sheds and asbestos, and installation of the first section 

of a path network to access individual taster plots and all other 

areas on site.  The long term aim of the community growing 

scheme is to encourage schools, community groups and 

individuals to plant their own fruit shrubs and vegetables to 

achieve a more healthy and active community.

Central 

Rochdale

£2,500.00 27 September 2016 Awarded £2,500 

from Clean & 

Green Priority Fund

CG/04/16 

& M/15/16

Norden Jubilee Park 

Notice Board

Friends of Norden Jubilee Park have approached Rochdale 

Council’s Environmental Management about the supply and 

installation of a notice board in Norden Jubilee Park. The notice 

board will promote the aims and objectives of the Friends group 

and raise awareness within the local community of the 

activities/events in the park.  The notice board will be of a similar 

quality to those found in other green spaces across Rochdale 

such as Denehurst Park, Balderstone Park and Springfield Park.  

Environmental Management will be commissioned to deliver the 

scheme to ensure a consistent approach and assurance of quality 

and safety concerning the installation of the notice board.

Norden £2,400.00 27 September 2016 Awarded £2,000 

from Clean & 

Green Priority Fund 

and £400 from 

Members Fund

W/10/16 Dowling Street 

Bollards

Supply and install two bollards on Dowling Street, Rochdale to 

prevent vehicles parking on the footpath outside the fire exit of 

The Curtain Theatre.  (The Curtain Theatre has agreed to match 

fund the installation of the bollards with a 50% contribution).

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£120.00 30 September 2016 Awarded £120 from 

Ward Fund

M/18/16 Fenton Street Alley 

Gate Repair

Repair of alley gate on Fenton Street, Rochdale to rectify the 

misalignment that is preventing residents from locking the gate.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£140.00 30 September 2016 Awarded £140 from 

Members Fund

Page 2 of 3

P
age 58



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

CE/11/16 Community 

Engagement & 

Cohesion Through 

Sports

Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association propose to organise 

a five-a-side soccer competition at the end of October/early 

November 2016 to engage young people aged 18-25 in sport with 

the aim of promoting community links and health.  The 

competition will be publicised on radio, social media and flyers 

with the expectation of attracting 25-30 teams of young people 

from different areas of Rochdale.

Rochdale 

Township

£1,500.00 11 October 2016 Awarded £1,500 

from Communities 

& Engagement 

Priority Fund

W/47/14 Wordsworth Way 

Trees Scheme

Removal of one tree on Bury Road, Rochdale and pruning of a 

line of trees at the rear of 61-64 Wordsworth Way, Rochdale to 

raise lower branches to improve passage along the footpath, and 

thinning the canopy to allow more light in the area and wind to 

penetrate through the canopy to make the trees less susceptible 

to being blow over in adverse weather.

Bamford £1,250.00 17 October 2016 Awarded £1,250 

from Ward Fund

CE/10/16 Wardleworth 

Community Centre 

Youth Club

Wardleworth Community Centre propose to provide regular 

structured activities for young people and their parents/guardians 

and promote the centre as a local resource.  Provision of a pool 

table will offer the opportunity for young people to participate in an 

indoor activity that enables them to improve their social skills, 

confidence and wellbeing.  In addition, this equipment would be 

made available to other groups and members of the community 

who attend the centre.

Central 

Rochdale

£1,000.00 19 October 2016 Awarded £1,000 

from Communities 

& Engagement 

Priority Fund

W/42/15 Flood Resilience 

Materials and 

Equipment

Provision of flood resilience materials and equipment for Central 

Rochdale Ward to be managed by the Community Flood 

Resilience Officer as a community resource to minimise flood 

damage/risk.

Central 

Rochdale

£1,554.00 24 October 2016 Awarded £1,554 

from Ward Fund

Page 3 of 3

P
age 59



APPENDIX 4

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17

Projects Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £18,391

Rochdale Township Projects Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Healey Yes

Place

Councillor O'Neill £2,500

Rochdale 

Township

Yes

People

Place

Touchstones £2,000

Spotland & 

Falinge

Yes

Place

Rochdale AFC and 

GMP

£1,500

Provision of unregulated on street parking bays outside Syke Methodist Chapel, Rochdale.

Estimate may change if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

Ref

RP/01/16 Syke Chapel Parking Bays

Name of Project

Project 

Description

Comments Highways have concerns about providing parking bays adjacent to Syke Methodist Chapel as it invites motorists to park in the vicinity of the 

roundabout used by a bus service and the potential for parked cars obstructing the buses.  Consultation will be necessary (specifically with TfGM) 

before any markings for bays are introduced.  Scheme considered at Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub Committee on 28 June 

2016 and Members decided to defer the scheme pending a site visit to rule out any safety issues.

Risk implication

Touchstones Rochdale propose to deliver an event that celebrates the heritage, culture and different communities in Rochdale with a day of 

activities, performances and workshops in Touchstones during the half term holiday October 2017 that will present, explore and celebrate the rich 

diversity of Rochdale.  The event would be an opportunity for ‘hard to reach’ communities and families to engage with the arts and heritage offer at 

Touchstones and a pilot for Celebrate Rochdale Day to become an annual event at Touchstones and in the town. (Project brief with information 

about the project and breakdown of proposed expenditure at Appendix 4A).

None

RP/07/16 Celebrate Rochdale Day at Touchstones

Risk implication

Project 

Description

Comments Additional cones will be stored and used at Spotland Stadium in conjunction with the existing traffic order.

Risk implication None

RP/09/16 Spotland Stadium No Waiting Cones

Project 

Description

Provision of cones to be used in conjunction with a traffic order that prohibits parking before, during and after events in the Spotland Stadium area.  

The order has been in place for several years and works well to control parking and it has had a major positive effect for local residents by 

preventing congestion in the vicinity of the Spotland Stadium ground.  Rochdale Township purchased sufficient cones when the order was 

implemented and over the years the quantity of cones has diminished as a result of being misplaced/stolen.

P
age 60



Rochdale Township Projects Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Spotland & 

Falinge

Yes

Place

Spotland & Falinge 

Area Forum

£14,980

Rochdale Township Capital Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

Yes

Place

Rochdale Air Training 

Cadets

£4,000

Castleton Yes

Place

37th Rochdale 

Scouts

£4,000

Ref Name of Project

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or 

reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time 

having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the 

scheme requiring readvertising.

TC/10/16 Silk Street Waiting Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of parking restrictions on Silk Street to prevent indiscriminate parking obstructing the access point to the Scout Hut.  Scheme was 

deferred at Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub Committee on 4 October 2016. 

Comments Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.

Risk implication

Introduction of parking restrictions on Ashfield Road to prevent indiscriminate parking at the entrance to the Rochdale Air Training Cadets' HQ.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or 

reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time 

having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the 

scheme requiring readvertising.

Comments Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.  Scheme was deferred at 

Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub Committee on 4 October 2016.  Agreed Ward Councillors to attend a site visit with 

Highways to consider the requirements of this proposed scheme.

Ashfield Road Waiting RestrictionsTC/09/16

Ref

Project 

Description

Risk implication Additionals works identified during restoration/installation that may change the cost.

RP/10/16 Heritage Wrought Iron Fencing

Project 

Description

Restoration of the wrought iron fencing of heritage value that previously surrounded Meanwood Primary School playing fields with the aim of re-

siting it within the Spotland & Falinge Ward.  A proposal has been put forward to re-site the fencing at Denehurst Park, Rochdale.  (Project brief 

with information about the project and breakdown of proposed expenditure at Appendix 4B).

Capital Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £63,910

Name of Project

P
age 61



Rochdale Township Capital Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Central 

Rochdale

Yes

Place

Local business £4,000

Healey Yes

Place

Member of public £4,000

Spotland & 

Falinge

Yes

Place

Ward Councillors £8,940

Ref Name of Project

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or 

reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time 

having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the 

scheme requiring readvertising.

TC/18/16 Longfield Road 20mph zone and Traffic Calming Measures

Project 

Description

Introduction of a 20mph zone including road humps on Marne Crescent, Jutland Avenue, Falkland Avenue, Mons Avenue, Oakfield Terrace and 

part of Longfield Road, Rochdale. The scheme is to address complaints over the issue of speeding vehicles and the use of the roads as a short cut 

between Edenfield Road and Sandy Lane, Rochdale. (Plan identifying 20mph zone and traffic calming measures attached at Appendix 4C)

Comments Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Introduction of a loading bay on Hamer Lane approximately 50 metres from its junction with Halifax Road to prevent indiscriminate parking that is 

having an adverse affect on businesses operating along Hamer Lane.  This scheme may require additional yellow lines between the petrol station 

exit and new bay to allow easier access into the bay by goods vehicles.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or 

reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time 

having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the 

scheme requiring readvertising.

Comments Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or 

reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time 

having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the 

scheme requiring readvertising.

TC/17/16 Shawclough Road Waiting Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on Shawclough Road north of The Healey Hotel opposite side to Dell Road, Rochdale to 

prevent indiscriminate parking.  Vehicles are parking at this currently unrestricted section of road and obscuring the sight line for pedestrians and 

cyclists using route 92 when crossing Shawclough Road.

Comments Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.

TC/16/16 Hamer Lane Loading Bay

P
age 62



Rochdale Township Capital Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

Yes

Place

Ward Councillors £3,000

Ref Name of Project

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or 

reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time 

having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the 

scheme requiring readvertising.

TC/19/16 & 

RP/07/14
Hill Street and Barlow Street Area Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of Limited Waiting and Prohibition of Waiting restrictions in the Hill Street and Barlow Street area involving consultation prior to any 

restrictions being advertised (Plan identifying locations and type of restrictions proposed attached at Appendix 4D)

Comments This scheme is a request for additional funds as the extent of the original proposal for waiting restrictions on Hill Street and Barlow Street has been 

expanded significantly after businesses and residents were consulted on the draft solution for the area. Highways have taken into consideration 

further requests for parking restrictions with a review of all restrictions to design an area wide solution rather than treat each location 

independently.  Extra restrictions proposed:

• Extension to restrictions on south side of Kenion Street outside the Community Centre to allow HGVs to manoeuvre into and out of the access 

opposite.

• Relocate limited waiting bay from Hill Street to Barlow Street to allow long stay parking for car sales businesses. Highways have discussed this 

proposal with the cafe owner. The new bay would be longer at 30 metres and can serve customers of the cafe, car sales businesses and others.

• New limited waiting bay on Robinson Street.  Highways have discussed this proposal with Kia Car Sales.

• Additional restrictions on north and east side of Summer Castle for proposed new Minky loading bay.

• Additional restrictions on the south side of Holroyd Street to ease access into industrial yard and along Holroyd Street itself.

• Extension of restrictions on west side of Summer Street to cover yard access of Mitchell’s Tyres.

This proposed scheme has been discussed at a meeting with Ward Councillors and received their support.  It was highlighted at this meeting, 

although this proposed scheme is within the Milkstone & Deeplish Ward, the parking problems in the area are exacerbated as the streets in 

question are located in the town centre.

P
age 63



 

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  ((22001166//1177))  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale RP/07/16       

Name of Request Originator Lisa O’Neill-Rogan, Programme Manager 

Project Manager & Ext Tom Besford, Arts and Heritage Manager 01706 924 984 

Completed by Lisa O’Neill-Rogan Date Completed 14/09/16 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Celebrate Rochdale Day at Touchstones, Rochdale 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

In the half term holiday October 2017 we would like to create an event 
that celebrates the heritage, culture and different communities in 
Rochdale. The event will be targeted at local families and young people 
from a diverse mix of backgrounds and communities. 
 
We will programme a day of activities, performances and workshops in 
Touchstones that will present, explore and celebrate the rich diversity 
of Rochdale.  
 
The day will run from 10-4pm and will include themed workshops and 
activities that will bring the community together to learn and share each 
other’s different culture and heritage but also discover the things they 
have in common. 
 
We will programme a piece of theatre that presents these themes in an 
accessible way for families and young people.  
 
The funding will allow this event to be free of charge and enable us to 
target families who do not currently engage with the arts and heritage 
offer at Touchstones. 
 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

The aim of the project is: 

 to engage a diverse mix of people from different backgrounds 
and cultures 

 to promote a community cohesion agenda within Touchstones 

 to celebrate difference 

 to target ‘hard to reach’ communities and families 

 to engage new audiences  

 to run this event as a pilot in the hope that Celebrate Rochdale 
Day will become an annual event at Touchstones and in the 
town 

 

Township Priorities Met Promoting community cohesion. Promoting Rochdale’s heritage. 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

Page 64

worrall sharron
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4A



 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

 
We have booked performances for around £600-£1000 and workshops or activities for £1000. We are 
assuming we will be able to book a suitable performance and activities at this price for this day. 

Risks that may change estimate 

 
none 

Total Estimated Fees 
Theatre show                       £1000 
Workshop facilitator x 4        £800 
Materials and publicity          £200 

Total Estimated Works Costs £ 

Total Cost £ 2000 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  October 2017 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

 
We will need to confirm this event to be included in our programme. 
 
The project needs to be in the October half term because it will take time to plan and programme the 
theatre piece and research the appropriate activities etc. This lead in time will enable us to engage with 
new audiences, develop partnerships and links. 

Completion Date The event will happen in October half term 2017  

Evidence 

 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service  Date  

Signature of Principal Townships 
Officer 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 
Page 65



TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  ((22001166//1177))
Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale RP/10/16 

Name of Request Originator Spotland & Falinge Area Forum 

Project Manager & Ext Michael Buczman - 2076 

Completed by Gary Finch / Michael Buczman Date Completed 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Heritage Wrought Iron Fencing – Spotland & Falinge Ward 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Some months ago Meanwood Primary School replaced the fencing 
surrounding its playing field. Local residents at the Area Forum 
suggested that the fencing being removed may have heritage value 
and if so should be re-sited within the Ward. 

Following inspection by the Conservation Officer it was confirmed that 
the wrought iron fencing being removed had heritage value. Given the 
condition of this fencing it will be necessary to carry out extensive 
restoration work to the fencing. The fencing is also spiked therefore 
there would be a need to make the fencing safe before it’s re-siting. 
The fencing is currently being stored at Green Lane. 

Because of the specialist nature of the work to be undertaken it has 
only been possible at this stage to receive a quote from one firm. 
Please see attached. 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Re-siting of the heritage wrought iron fencing within Spotland and 
Falinge Ward. 

At this stage a proposal has been put forward to re- site the fencing at 
Denehurst Park. 

Township Priorities Met 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

That only the restoration work identified at this stage will be necessary 

Risks that may change estimate 

Additional work 

Total Estimated Fees £ Page 66

worrall sharron_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4B

worrall sharron_2
Typewritten Text
Place



Total Estimated Works Costs £14,980 

Total Cost £14,980 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  
Because the re-siting of the fencing is part of a larger project the 
estimated start date still needs to be determined.  

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

 

Completion Date  

Evidence 

 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service  Date  

Signature of Principal Townships 
Officer 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 67



Re: 45m Wrought Iron Railing Panel Restoration - Rochdale 

Dear Michael, 

We thank you for your recent enquiry and have much pleasure in submitting our revised quotation, 

for the collection of approx. 45m of 1500mm high wrought iron railing panels from your council yard, 

blast clean within our workshop, remove all corrosion and replace areas wasted beyond 50% of 

original section, extend all horizontal rails, reduce all panels to 1080mm high, weld a new horizontal 

base rail to all panels, weld safety balls to all finial points, prime and finish paint throughout to one 

BS / RAL colour of your choice. Return the railing panels to your council yard for installation by 

yourselves. 

Lump Sum Price £14,980 (Fourteen Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty Pounds) 

net plus VAT 

Lead time from receipt of an order (based on our current workload) is 5-6 weeks. 

We also offer an additional price to perform a full site survey, prepare working drawings for approval 

and install the above railings to prepared structurally sound stone provided. 

Lump Sum Price £8,473 (Eight Thousand Four Hundred and Seventy Three Pounds) 

net plus VAT 

Lead time from receipt of an order to installation of the railing panels (based on our current 

workload) is 8-9 weeks. 

Our quotation assumes that the railings are installed without the need for additional metalwork 

supporting posts (None currently allowed for). 

Michael Buczman 
Rochdale Borough Council 
Green Lane 
Heywood,  
Rochdale,  
OL10 2DY  

Email   Michael.Buczman@Rochdale.Gov.UK 

Date: 

Our ref: 

Your ref: 

20th September 2016 

16-005revA 

Railing Panels Restoration – Rochdale 

Page 68



Our quotation for installation assumes you will provide the following: 

1. Wall and stone copings will be built by others prior to our site survey.

2. Approval of our drawings prior to manufacture.

3. Free onsite parking adjacent to our works.

4. Suitable power on site.

5. Usual main contractor welfare facilities.

6. Normal working hours (Mon – Fri 8 – 5).

7. All necessary stonework will be free of ironwork and pre-drilled to our construction issue

drawings prior to our installation.

8. All necessary stonework will be level, straight and structurally capable of carrying the loads

imposed upon them by the railing panels (Structural calculations not allowed for).

Payment terms – 30 day monthly account. 

This quotation is valid for ninety days. 

We trust our price is of interest to you, and should you have any queries, please don't hesitate to 

contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely 

Page 69



Page 70

worrall sharron_3
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4C



Page 71

worrall sharron_4
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4D


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Healey Area Forum
	4 Norden Area Forum
	5 Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
	6 Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum
	7 Spotland and Falinge Area Forum
	8 Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority Group
	9 Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority Group
	10 Community Centre Monitoring
	11 Rochdale Blue Plaque Scheme
	Append. 1 for Rochdale Blue Plaque Scheme

	12 Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 2 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4A - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4B - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4C - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4D - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17




